DRAINAGE DISTRICT 3 CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC HEARING ON ENGINEER'S REPORT ON REPAIRS OR IMPROVEMENTS TO MAIN TILE OF DD 3

Monday, November 03, 2021 10:00 am

Large Conference Room

This meeting was held electronically and in-person.

11/1/2021 - Minutes

1. Open Meeting

Drainage District 3 Chairperson Gary Rabe opened the meeting. Also present were Trustee Jeff Heinzeroth; Trustee Dennis Prochasca; Dave Johnson, Attorney; Lee Gallentine, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA); Mike Nissly; Michael Pearce, Network Specialist; Diane Hamilton; Scott Hamilton; Tim Broer; Jon Bartlett; Paul Bartlett; Pete Bartlett; George Loerger; and Michelle Kuechenberg, Drainage Clerk.

2. Approve Agenda

Motion by Rabe to approve the agenda. Second by Heinzeroth. All ayes. Motion carried.

- 3. Approve Minutes
 - Motion by Heinzeroth to approve the minutes of Continuation of Public Hearing Drainage Meeting dated 08/16/21. Second by Rabe. All ayes. Motion carried.
- 4. Introductions/Attendance Introductions were made and attendance verified.
- DD 3 Discuss W Possible Action Engineer's Report On Repairs & Improvements To Main Tile Of DD 3 & Supplement To Engineer's Report

Gallentine asked everyone to direct their attention to the Supplemental Report. Gallentine stated we are here to talk about the part in the Supplemental Report, the Main tile starting at the existing

open ditch, southeast of the intersection of JJ and 150 th. Gallentine stated at the headwall and moving upstream where it goes to the railroad, in the Supplemental Engineers Report, CGA suggested taking the section and replacing it with an open ditch. Gallentine stated originally, when this district was created in the early 1900s, it was an open ditch. Gallentine stated in about the teens they decided to fill that portion in and put tile in. Gallentine stated CGA is proposing to go back to that previous design, Gallentine added that this decision resulted from another report farther upstream that was authorized at the last meeting. Gallentine stated that one had quite a few cases of tile that was in bad condition and quite a history on it, Gallentine added this one didn't have quite as much history. Gallentine summarized the concerns of the county. Gallentine stated the concerns of the Secondary Roads Department, at the Tintersection, lowa code says that the cost for road crossings out of the Secondary Roads authority and they were concerned about two crossings, especially at an angle because it added up to quite a cost, Gallentine added if he remembers right, it was about \$860,000. Gallentine stated that CGA suggested going along the blue route in the Supplemental Engineers Report instead, and maybe even extending it a little bit west and then coming up so there is just one crossing in 90 degrees and it saves them quite a bit of money. Gallentine stated that if we do that, what is NRCS going to determine that. Gallentine stated that NRCS typically allows you to go back to your best existing design prior to 1985-1985 without having impacted jurisdictional. Gallentine stated that he's been emailing NRCS back and forth on that issue and he does not have a firm answer from them yet. Gallentine stated the last email he received from them was last Thursday and they wanted to know if work was done on along the blue route in the Supplemental Engineers Report and leave the tile in place then NRCS will have issues because they've improved Drainage. Gallentine explained to NRCS that they're misunderstanding what is being done. Gallentine added the tile would either be disabled, as in removed, or filled with concrete or something. Gallentine stated only flow through the Main open ditch would happen. Gallentine stated he has not heard back from them yet. Gallentine addressed another question that was asked, "does the tile actually follow this route?" Gallentine stated this is a 100-year-old map, CGA went out with tile locators, Gallentine added the tile actually does follow that route. Gallentine stated that it runs about at that kind of angle maybe a little closer to the intersection. Gallentine stated that they ran a tile locater up it, that's where it follows, when CGA was out there they saw a very small sinkhole starting at the northeast quadrant of that intersection. Gallentine stated that the tile follows the red line on the Supplemental Engineers Report. Gallentine stated those are the two updates he has.

Gallentine stated that he knows another concern was with a private crossing, so landowners were not isolated. Gallentine added that CGA ran a few numbers, with material prices being so crazy, CGA thinks a private crossing would be about \$50,000. Gallentine stated that Dave brought up in previous meetings that details about the private crossing will have to be worked out long term whether the maintenance on that is on the landowner or the district. Gallentine stated that some agreement needs to be in place. Gallentine stated that he believes only one landowner has come forward with that concern. Gallentine stated in addition to the cost we've got in the Supplemental Report, the District would be adding about \$50,000 for a private crossing. Gallentine stated that CGA went through the records to see if the ROW had been purchased, Gallentine noted it's getting difficult. Gallentine stated they can find records where people are filing claims for damages. Gallentine stated people are saying, "hey, I'm going to be damaged for this", typically for a ROW is what they're filing claims for. Gallentine stated what CGA hasn't found is whether or not they've been paid. Gallentine stated we know people have asked for money for a ROW, we just don't know what they got paid and if they got paid. Gallentine stated that maybe the Drainage Clerk would be able to find more on this. Gallentine stated that the thing that doesn't help this at all is that the establishment of this district was spread out over several years, Gallentine added that we've got different maps with different names. Gallentine stated that the person who filed the damage claim may not be the one who ended up getting paid for it. Gallentine stated they're still in process on the ROW stuff too. Gallentine asked if there were any questions. Rabe asked if we were planning on with the railroad just going over that again. Gallentine stated that the way the reports were set up were not touching anything inside of railroad ROW, Gallentine added the way the thought process there is the open ditch upstream, the water comes down and gets to the railroad ROW, the tile would still be there, the swale would still be there where the railroad bridge is. Gallentine stated as long as the tile can handle it, it would flow through the tile to the open ditch on the other side. Gallentine stated if the tile isn't big enough it would rise to a level, go through the swale, and then drop back down into the open ditch. Gallentine stated that CGA can change that if the Trustees wanted, CGA just did it mainly just as history we were doing this up here and this down here. Gallentine stated if the district wants to have more continuity of flow, we can run through the process with the railroad, Gallentine noted that it wasn't a quick process. Gallentine added that what we are designing, constructing, and installing here, this is a 100-year system plus. Gallentine stated that we want to make sure it's actually right, acceptable, and adequate for everybody too. Gallentine stated as of right now we're not touching anything inside of railroad right of way but that could change. A landowner asked, "so when it washes the railroad out, who's problem is that, theirs?" Johnson stated if we decided to go under them and put a new tile or and open ditch then it would make it very expensive. Johnson stated the last time this was done the railroad wanted \$100,000 to go under their bed. Johnson stated that if it was left alone, the question then becomes, "is that tile under the railroad performing." Johnson stated that if it's not performing, if it's broken down, the railroad can come in and tell us to fix it by lowa code. Johnson stated then we get sucked into their high cost of going under the rail bed. Johnson stated that this was also a culvert that exists in that location. Johnson stated technically it's a bridge, all the more reason why they're responsible for that cost just like the roads would be. Johnson stated that district 3 is in a pretty good position as it relates to the railroad because if it is a bridge or a culvert, they have to pay for it. Johnson stated that he does not think the railroad is going to come knocking on the door saying they want all that work done. Johnson stated that if the railroad claims that we're washing them out, then we will say that they need to improve their bridge. Gallentine stated that the other thing is, when we're not inside of the ROW we're going to stop short of the ROW distance, we're going to armor that bank to try and protect that from washing out. Gallentine stated that anytime you take water from an open ditch and take it out of a tube or put it in a tube, the difference in flow always creates some currents and there's potential for erosion. Gallentine stated that we'll do the best we can under the current proposal, if we need to change it, we can. Johnson stated that under common law if you change the flow of water and it erodes the down grade, they could have a cause of action against you for eroding their railroad bed. Johnson stated that in this case because of the statutes involved under chapter 468 I still think we can go back to the fact that it is a bridge and it's their responsibility and not ours. Gallentine added that it's not like we are taking an open ditch and sliding it over 400 feet to where it's never been, we're keeping it where it was, Gallentine noted that it makes a difference under code. John Bartlett asked what if you plugged the tile? Bartlett stated that the effect of having that tile run underneath the railroad is the exact as, you might as well dig a hole in the bottom in the ditch, and that hole will fill up with water and water will go over the top. Bartlett stated that's what it would be like with that tile, it won't do a thing, it will just open ditch and as soon as it hits that dam underneath the tracks

it's just going to fill that tile and come up over the top. Bartlett added you might as well just dig a hole in the ground, what would happen if you did plug the tile, so it comes up over that dam? Johnson stated he does not like the appearance of that, 'plugging the tile', it makes it look like we're doing something wrong. Gallentine stated that he doesn't like it because it will encourage siltation at that lower end, if you have a small flow that doesn't get deep enough to come over the top, it will just sit there and be stagnant, Gallentine added any silt or dirt that is in there will just drop out.

Gallentine stated that he also understands the concern of going open ditch to a tile back to an open ditch. Bartlett stated he was just thinking out loud. Gallentine stated he appreciates it. Gallentine stated there is no simple easy solutions with railroads, mainly because they're hard to interact with. Rabe asked on the rains that we've had maybe 3 or 4 inches, how full does that tile on the upper hand corner underneath the bridge get. Rabe asked if it was half full, three guarters of the way full, whole way full? A landowner stated that it gets pretty scary full. Another landowner stated that it becomes a river. Gallentine stated he doesn't know how much the tile currently carries because it's so broke on the upper end, Gallentine added that if you have an open ditch feeding it, it will fill up quickly. John Bartlett stated when you open it up, you will uncover all of the outlet tiles that are silted over, so it will fill up that much faster. Gallentine stated that any private tile that is connected to this main for both projects, once you put in a main open ditch, they will have a free-flowing outlet. Gallentine added that they will just dump in there no matter what. Gallentine stated right now the only time they go in is if they're under enough pressure once that tile is filled up. Johnson stated that you didn't design this system but when the engineer designed it back when they were supposed to take into consideration all that water going to the tile, going to the railroad. Johnson asked if it was an undersized tile line. Gallentine stated for the standards of the day it wasn't undersized, probably for the expectation of a half inch drainage coefficient, it probably isn't going to do that. Hamilton stated that with all the tile that has been added to it, and then if you take and fix that section, prior to what this picture is then potentially you are putting a lot more pressure on the system. Gallentine stated that the drainage area is the same, you're probably putting at this location at a faster rate than before. A landowner stated that when the bottom end was opened up 2 years ago or whatever it was, all those tile that come in there, come in above the bottom of the ditch. The landowner stated that he assumes all the tile that is laid there now is going to be the bottom of the open ditch, so all the tile coming in are going to outlet at the bottom of the ditch. Gallentine stated that the bottom 2 feet. Gallentine stated he just did a history of that cleanout, there were quite a few tile that were actually submerged or down below the silt line that were out letting in, Gallentine added once we cleaned out the silt and pulled off the metal sections they started flowing again. Gallentine stated that it was surprising. Gallentine stated that if we deepen this ditch deeper than what the flow line existing tile is he knows what NRCS is going to say, they will say it's going to impact jurisdictional wetland. Gallentine stated that he has a few answers but not all the answers that we were hoping for by this meeting. Rabe stated we haven't even heard from the railroad. Rabe stated he's sure they have all of this information, they obviously have to be concerned, well maybe. Rabe stated what if we approve this and do that, they have all the information, what if they come back on us. Johnson stated that they have to object in order for them to appeal. Johnson stated assuming that we gave them notice, mailed it to them, and they were listed as a landowner in that publication, they have not filed any motions to date that I'm aware of. Kuechenberg stated that they were given notice and she has not heard anything. The law says if you don't object, you waive your objection because if you're supposed to let us know what your problem is so we can fix it. Johnson stated if you don't object, we can move forward, and they waive their objections. Johnson stated that they can complain after the fact, but they really can't bring in action after the fact if they didn't file an objection.

Hamilton asked that if they go through and do what the upstream part of it and it makes it worse for the lower section, what recourse do those landowners have against the drainage district or the county? Gallentine stated that he does not think they would have any recourse against the county because it is a drainage district and not a county project. Johnson asked the landowner to run the scenario by him again. Hamilton stated if you go through and you fix the part that is upstream (the part west of the railroad) and it makes the drainage even worse because all of the sudden the flow going through is greater, this land and the laterals that are in there don't drain at all then what recourse do those landowners have? Johnson stated that they could go to the board of Trustees and say we think the system is broken and we want it repaired. Johnson stated if it's the tile, you might have to put in a new tile or you could put in a new open ditch like you're thinking about doing. Johnson stated that the recourse is to ask for it to work properly. Johnson stated that if they don't do something that you think they legally should do, then you ask the district court to tell them to do it. Hamilton asked if that takes 2 or 3 years for that to happen, what happens for the loss and revenue that's been incurred because of that? Johnson stated that you normally do not get damages because you claim that the drainage is not as good as it should have been. Johnson stated that you just have to assert your rights at these meetings to get done what you think needs to be done as soon as possible. Johnson stated so, I hear you're concerned about more water coming down on the east side of the railroad and that tile not being fast enough under compacity and you're not draining. Hamilton stated that its already having problems draining some of that property right now, for whatever reason. Hamilton asked Paul Bartlett to back him up. Hamilton stated that one of the biggest wet spots that is up there has tile running through it and it is almost sitting on top of that ditch not draining. Hamilton stated that if you start pushing more water through that, potentially if there is enough pressure, he could see water backing up into the tile. Johnson stated he thinks that's why we're here because we're trying to determine if that tile should be replaced with an open ditch. Johnson stated we are looking into what Hamilton's concerns are. Hamilton stated that he remembers them talking about that last meeting and he asked if it's been inspected over the years, there could be plugs in the tile. Paul Bartlett stated it was a good tile it just has to wait until everything up above goes and then it goes out just fine. Paul Bartlett stated that it has a French drain in it, it goes fine, it has to wait. Paul Bartlett stated the setup they have now, is if you open the upper end, on Petes farm, there's a big low spot there that now sits full of water, it goes and then this goes. Paul stated that if you open that up and don't open this then it's all going to come down there and it will sit there. Gallentine asked if the private tile that drains the wet spot connected to the main tile or if it outlets into the waterway. Bartlett stated it went into the main tile, Bartlett added that it pushes water up from above, the pressure from the upper end.

Bartlett stated that for him, if you decide to open the upper end, you've decided that it needs to be an open ditch. Bartlett stated because you can't leave a mile in the middle. Gallentine stated that would be very unusual, he would agree. John Bartlett stated that they think its good to open up the west end, and they've already opened up the east end, Bartlett would like to know why the middle section wouldn't be opened. John Bartlett asked if cost was the primary reason. Rabe stated because they've never had a complaint on that, Rabe added that's why they worked on the west part of it first. Rabe stated that's where we seen all of the broken tile. John Bartlett stated where we're at now, knowing what we know, the east is already open, and you've already approved the west. Rabe stated that we're having this meeting today because it was voted upon that we get more answers. Rabe stated he is not opposed; he is more than likely going to do it. Heinzeroth stated that they were trying to do it right, Heinzeroth added that he doesn't even know if it can be voted on being as they're trying to go across the ditch, and they do not have the approval. Gallentine stated that he'd sure like something more in writing from them. Heinzeroth stated that it is probably something that will happen, but we cannot proceed until we get the go ahead from the NRCS. Gallentine stated that the NRCS will not ever tell you that you can't do it, what they'll do is they'll say, "oh the Drainage District did this so individual producers now you've impacted jurisdictional wetlands, you're going to lose your farm benefits." Gallentine stated that they will beat the landowners with a stick for the district's decision. Heinzeroth stated so anyone that has a wetland could be in trouble. Gallentine stated yes, that is typically how it goes, Gallentine added there is time before that, just because you're contemplating a project NRCS isn't going to do that tomorrow. Gallentine stated that they would wait until after construction happens, they're a reactive system, not a proactive system. Heinzeroth stated if the tile is on the bottom of the ditch, it doesn't mean that it will not drain, Heinzeroth added you can have pressure. Heinzeroth stated that he has a ditch, and his tiles are all on the bottom and still drain. Gallentine stated that once a tile gets full, it goes from a gravity system to a pressure system. Gallentine stated that until a tile gets full, for all new water coming down, you need that much air going back up so its an even flow, Gallentine added it becomes a pressure system once it gets full, who's got the highest elevation to put the most pressure on it. Gallentine stated that it will do that somewhat after the open ditch is put in, it's just a lot easier to fill up the area inside the open ditch than it is to shove up a 6-inch tile. Gallentine stated that he wished he had more answers from NRCS. Johnson stated that if you approved it today, they might come back later and say you affected the. Heinzeroth stated so we need to delay it. Johnson stated that is the prudent thing to do, it takes discipline and patience to do it that way but that's the way you should do it. Johnson stated that he would be shocked if they said it was an improvement if we're just using the same system and going down the road once. Johnson added he could see how they would be concerned if we were going to go two lines, that would be an improvement. Johnson stated we're going to refer to this project as a repair until we go to an open system, then the word improvement starts to creep in. Gallentine stated that when we've done these, the reports are titled tile repair or improvements just to cover bases, typically when they do construction plans CGA calls them reconstruction. Johnson stated that when NRCS sees us go from a tile to an open ditch then their discretion has to commence to whether or not that will increase the flow and change the determinations. Gallentine stated NRCS probably, as long as you go back to that original design, will not say that increases the flow, Gallentine added that it does increase over the tile, but it gets you back to the best system you had prior to 1984. Johnson stated so we have that to fall back on. Gallentine stated that if it wasn't for the fact that this was an open ditch before this would be a whole different conversation.

Heinzeroth asked when we put this through the ditch, along the gravel road, do you think we're going to have to buy property, or do you think we can do it in the ROW? Gallentine stated he would assume that in the blue area outlined on the Supplemental Engineers Report, the district will have to buy more ROW just to be safe. Gallentine stated that we can talk to the county engineer, most engineers, due to the federal traffic standards, don't want an open ditch in their road ditch. Gallentine stated that the engineers could say no. Heinzeroth asked so then we would be back to where they would have to pay \$800,000 to put a culvert through there. Gallentine stated that that was the balance part, Gallentine added that he wouldn't be surprised if they would say, "hey we would really like you just to put it on private property and not inside our ROW." Gallentine stated that it may be something where that's part of the deal, you talk to the county say, "we can change this crossing but we're going to need more ROW, are you willing to buy this ROW for us, is that an option?" Johnson stated that he doesn't know if we would be able to negotiate with the county for moving it onto private, Johnson added that you really don't want it in that right of way, you drive by those and wherever they exist they just scare the heck out of you. Johnson stated somebody can go off of the road. Gallentine stated the worst ones are in the winter when there is snow and you do not realize they're there. Johnson asked how many, what is he talking an acre of right of way. Gallentine stated he has not calculated it, maybe a couple of acres. Johnson stated that you're reducing the cost of the projects from \$880,000 down to \$170,000. Heinzeroth stated that somebody did go off of the road there a few years ago, he doesn't remember what it was anymore, but it is steep. Rabe stated that when you come down that hill and around that corner, it is kind of a tricky corner. Johnson stated that you're looking out for the county which is nice because there use to be immunity but then they did away with that so they can still be sued now. Gallentine stated that he doesn't think that he has talked to a county engineer yet that has an existing open ditch inside of their right of way right off of their road ditch and open ditch that hasn't said, "man I wish I could get rid of that." Gallentine stated that usually when they're put there it was due to convenience or landowner objecting or something because of the chances of the low spot running parallel with the road are pretty slim. Johnson stated that it seems to him that we should be having a debate whether we want this to be a tile that stays the same, a tile that is replaced, or we have an open ditch because if we come back in a month and NRCS says we're fine, we have to have that conversation then. Johnson asked if we should have that debate now. Johnson stated that it sounds like we're going to have that debate and the landowner basically has to show that there is either the need or the desire for something to be done. Johnson stated that sometimes things are necessary because they're just not draining, sometimes you want or desire better drainage, so you want a 1-inch coefficient instead of a half. Johnson stated that it could either be need or it could be desire. Johnson stated that if enough landowners say they really want a more expensive system because we want it to drain more water faster. Johnson stated there is need or desire, the third question you want to ask is if it is feasible. Johnson stated that a million-dollar crossing under the road doesn't seem too feasible to him so he's glad that we're looking at a solution to that. Johnson asked Gallentine if he put together projected costs for this option, we're looking at right now. Gallentine stated that the only option that CGA suggested was open ditch due to continuity. Johnson asked about the cost. Gallentine stated that it was in the report. Gallentine stated that the cost of the open ditch was in the red on the Supplemental Engineers Report. Gallentine stated that it would be \$466,490 plus the \$50,000 for a private crossing. Gallentine stated that you're right over \$500,000. Gallentine stated that the road crossing for the red route, not the blue, you're at \$863,000.

Johnson asked Gallentine to refresh his memory where that private land crossing was going. Gallentine stated that the landowners will have to refresh them. Bartlett asked what that crossing would be. Gallentine pointed to a section on the map where the property crosses. Bartlett asked if it was a big culvert. Hamilton stated that most of that land was Dorthey's land but some of it is Bartletts land. Hamilton asked if one private crossing would be enough. Bartlett stated that it was all Dorthey's land. Gallentine referred to the map and stated so Dorthey owns that narrow piece and these two 40's. Bartlett stated that Dorthey owns all there 40's on the map where the private crossing would go. Johnson asked if anyone could explain the need to cross, right now you can get over the tile, I mean you can take equipment over it. Bartlett stated that the ditch is filled in and the tile is underneath, and the ditch is filled in over the top of the tile, so we just drive across. Bartlett stated that we have rock over that. Johnson asked if they're getting from the west farm to the east farm. Hamilton stated from the east to the west. Johnson stated that she owns land on both sides. Bartlett stated that we come off of the road and there is a lane that we use to get to the two fields but then when this becomes an open ditch, we have to have a bridge across to get out to the one field. Johnson stated that one issue that always gets really sticky is if the private crossing becomes a district asset or does that become something that the landowner has to maintain. Johnson stated that different county supervisors take different approaches to that because the code is not helpful on that, so Johnson thinks we need to have a discussion and consider if we want that to be a drainage district asset that the district maintain. Johnson stated because when that bridge collapses in 75 years and a landowner comes in and asks for it to be replaced, the district can say that is your private land bridge, you repair it and then the landowner says well you put that in so you can put the ditch in to make things right for me to get to the other side. Johnson stated that he thinks we need to have a very clear understanding and agreement whether this is going to be a private land bridge in the future or whether this is going to be a drainage district asset. Bartlett stated we need to decide now instead of waiting 100 years. Johnson stated that people have different opinions on whether it should be a district asset. Johnson stated that an argument could be made but for the open ditch you wouldn't have needed that private crossing, so it was kind of created by the district. Johnson stated that so if you're the landowner you say so the district needed that in so I can have access to the ground they should always be responsible for that in the future. Johnson stated that at least we're not talking about a huge bridge, some of them can be \$200,000 to replace. Johnson stated that if it's not a large one, it's a little easier for the district to say that they'll take responsibility for it. Johnson stated that he thinks if we go down that road, we definitely want to make it a clear understanding who's responsible for it. Bartlett stated that it would be helpful to know what they did originally when it was open, what they agreed upon back then. Johnson stated that someone different may have farmed the west side of it and someone different farmed the east side of it. Gallentine stated that he thinks that land split has been odd for a while, he's got a map for it at the office. Johnson stated that at least it is a \$50,000 item and not a \$250,000 item for a 14-foot-deep ditch. Gallentine stated that when this district was created, he's not quite sure how those folks even accessed this because it was all one owner. Gallentine stated granted 100 years ago they were crossing a lot of different stuff; you get a team of horses and a little bit of equipment, and you'd be good. Hamilton asked if the ditch ran just north of the intersection, then there might have been a driveway straight into it to get at that western part without having to go across the ditch. Gallentine stated that back then for whatever reason the person who owned this 40 also owned the other 40, they owned both sides of the road.

Johnson asked if we had a relatively recent assessment schedule for DD 3. Gallentine stated that the assessment was done when we cleaned out the open ditch, we also did a reclassification. Johnson asked if there were projections based on both sides being an open ditch the landowners can see how much might be assessed to them. Gallentine asked Kuechenberg if she had that spreadsheet. Kuechenberg stated she did, everyone got a spreadsheet when they came in. Johnson asked if the project was still desirable when they see how much it will cost. Johnson stated that if you have a pretty good idea of what you will be assessed, be careful what you ask for because you might get it. Heinzeroth stated that everyone in the room had land that is affected on the top end, all of the bottom end people are not here. Rabe stated that he had land on the bottom. Heinzeroth stated that you're the only one, everyone else has ground above. Heinzeroth stated that no one from the bottom is complaining. Rabe stated that according to the spreadsheet, the project will cost him \$70,000. Heinzeroth stated that he understands. Rabe stated that is the way it is. Rabe stated that when the other ditch was done, it cost the bottom half, it is what it is, it's part of the district. Johnson asked what they mean when they refer to the bottom half. Rabe stated the open ditch on the east. Johnson stated that a lot of people in attendance are for the red line area on the Engineers Report. Johnson stated to make it more complicated, if you just did the west of it, how would you assess that? Johnson asked if the people on the upper end would be assessed. Gallentine stated that you would keep it as a main. Johnson stated that it is unusual to fix the upper half and not the middle. Gallentine stated he agrees. Heinzeroth stated that he thinks everyone is for it but we just want to do it right. Rabe stated that we got the wetland, and you start getting in there. Rabe stated that we got a lot, it's like what they're doing in Washington, pass the bill and then we'll decide what we're going to spend the money on.

Gallentine stated to make the discussion simpler, if it wasn't for the road crossing, is everyone ok with the project plus one private crossing. Heinzeroth stated that was an easy answer but his question to the road crossing, it's \$800,000 that goes out to the whole county. Heinzeroth asked what that would be per person. Gallentine stated that he doesn't think it's per person big of deal as much as it really hurts his budget because he would spend it all in one year and that hurts what he can do on other things as the county engineer. Heinzeroth stated that the whole Hardin County would pay for a portion of that crossing. Gallentine stated yes, it would be all of Hardin County, but depending on what type of funds he can tap out of he could possibly use federal so it would be the whole U.S. Gallentine stated that he was just trying to say if it wasn't for the road crossing and everyone was for it, at least we know that there is a desire, want, and need feasibility of the drainage project. Johnson asked if the Trustees could entertain a motion approving the open ditch on the west and the open ditch on the east subject to one condition that the NRCS comes back and says that the single crossing will not affect the wetland determination. Johnson stated then we wouldn't have to have another meeting a month or two from now. Gallentine stated you could, the west project has already been approved so you only have to approve the east project. Johnson stated that it would be a good idea to get them both approved or not approved at the same time. Gallentine stated that one has already been approved, so however you want to do it. Johnson stated that before assessments go out is all he's saying, it would be nice to know. Jon

Bartlett asked to clarify for the NRCS thing if that was just only tied to the road crossing, right? Gallentine stated that if NRCS deems that you moved this, you've improved your jurisdictional wetland, that's everyone upstream. Jon Bartlett stated so it's just tied to that one crossing. Johnson stated so you're just being extremely cautious, aren't you? Johnson stated that it is hard for them to say that we're going to increase the drainage of wetlands just by them moving a crossing. Gallentine stated that he just wants to get their answer ahead of time because he doesn't want to assume something, build it, and landowners get letters saying they're losing all of their farms. Gallentine stated that he's been on those projects trying to fix someone else's issues and it's not fun. Johnson stated that if the board approved the projects subject to one condition that the NRCS responds by saying this does not affect the wetland determination then you wouldn't have to have another meeting. Johnson stated you could get that letter in a day, a week, or a month, whenever you get it, that satisfies that condition, and the project could be bid, and we could move forward. Gallentine stated theoretically we could get that letter tomorrow, if we do, we wouldn't have to wait a month to do anything. Johnson stated that if we do another hearing, we have to schedule it in advance and announce the date and time, so we don't have to send out new notices to everyone, so right now we're following the code by scheduling new meetings and announcing the next one. Johnson stated and again, so far, no one has filed an objection on behalf of the railroad. Johnson stated that if you open up the ditch they might come in and complain that their tile is not working, but if we could say that the tile is fine and if there is surface water running close to that bridge then you guys have to fix that bridge. Johnson stated that we don't want to have to ask them permission to go under their bridge. Rabe stated that it would put an obstruction right on their own bridge because the tile runs right in the middle of the ditch there. Gallentine stated that they don't really care. Gallentine stated that as long as the trains still show up in Omaha. Rabe stated or do you just say screw it and use that \$800,000 make the whole county pay for it. Gallentine stated that you have that authority. Johnson stated he thinks the county could object, and they have. Johnson stated that they could say that its not feasible. Heinzeroth stated that they have like a \$150,000 annual budget, he didn't like to disapprove it, did he. Gallentine stated he can't, he doesn't have that authority to disapprove it, he just has the authority to object. Johnson stated that the county can say we don't want to incur that much of a road expense. Johnson stated that when he read that letter from the engineer, he said it's a diplomatic way of objecting. Johnson stated that if they brought suit against this district then we would have to argue that they didn't object, a judge will say that letter is sufficient to be an objection it was just politely stated, they've got grounds to sue you. Johnson stated that if you push it through for and \$880,000 road, they could bring suit and get a judge to rule that this is not a feasible project. Gallentine stated that he would prefer to go the route of lets just get the answer from NRCS because he's pretty sure they will be ok with it. A landowner stated that he recalls the engineer threatening to close that JJ avenue rather than having to spend that kind of money. Gallentine stated that he does have the authority to do that. Johnson stated that ends their responsibility to put in a crossing. Gallentine stated that it would.

A landowner asked if the drainage district had the authority to take new right of way. Gallentine stated, yes. A landowner stated so that's not an obstacle really, if they object too bad. Heinzeroth stated it would be nice if the county would pay for it because we're trying to do them a favor. A landowner stated that if thing moves ahead, under those conditions now, it has to be determined who's private crossing that is now, correct. Gallentine stated that would be the other hoop to jump through is who maintains that crossing. Gallentine stated that is a tough one, the question is how they accessed it 100 years ago. Gallentine stated that they dealt with it in some manor back then, but we don't know how. A landowner asked how necessary it was to change it, that it seems pretty good, when we get rain, it is a ditch and goes through them big culverts. Gallentine asked if the landowner was saying that we stop the project short and treat it like we are the railroad. The landowner stated they were just throwing it out there because it seems pretty good now. The landowner stated that the culverts there now always handle the water. Pete Bartlett stated that they will be 5 feet above the bottom of the ditch. Gallentine stated it was an option, he's truthfully confident that the NRCS will come back and say we can shift. A landowner stated that it needs to be done right. Johnson stated that one crossing is better than two, you might as well set it right for the next 100 years and get it right. A landowner asked if it was an open ditch if we thought it would wash the culverts out. Gallentine stated he doesn't think it will do them any favors. Johnson stated that we don't have a study as to the specific right of way acreage. Gallentine asked Johnson if there was potential to approve the project pending NRCS's decision. Johnson stated subject to that condition that the NRCS responds that it will not affect wetland determinations. A landowner asked if we know that there is enough right of way along the entire ditch, or if it's possible that it spreads out. Johnson stated that it was tricky because when it was originally done the engineer didn't provide the specs that they provide today. The landowner asked if it could change. Gallentine stated that it could. Johnson stated that the question then becomes how much you have to compensate the landowner for that additional right of way. Johnson stated are you going to have 50 more feet along that entire open ditch and will that equate to three acres or four. A landowner referred to the map and stated that the way it runs now, the ditch runs along the fence on the north side there is a whole bunch of right of way with a lane that goes clear along the side of it. The landowner asked if it was possible that ditch would move south. Gallentine stated it was possible. Gallentine stated that the NRCS will require us to put an open ditch wherever that main tile is. Gallentine stated that if that main tile isn't in that same spot as the waterway, we're going where the tile is. A landowner stated that the ditch today is above the tile by a couple of feet so when you go to the bottom and apply the grade that angle is probably going to extend further than it does today. Gallentine stated that we have to follow the original design, if he remembers right, it's a one to one, for every foot you go up you got a foot. Gallentine stated that its really steep, a lot steeper than what he would like it but that's what we're stuck with. Gallentine stated that there are two questions with the right of way: (1) when they did it originally did, they buy right of way, and (2) do we need more right of way than what they bought. Gallentine stated that we do not know what we have for right of way. Gallentine stated that we're having difficulty, we know people filed damages, but we don't know if they got paid or if someone else got paid. Gallentine stated that when they filed their claims for damages, they also filed their claims for remonsterance, it was a dual document. Johnson stated it was hard to ask people just to waive their right of way because not everyone will do it. Johnson stated that some might say I want it, I don't care if it takes another two acres of my ground because it's going to improve the other acres that much. Johnson stated that the people in the room might waive the damages for the right of way, but other people may not. A landowner asked if their assessment might be double. Gallentine stated he doesn't know about double. Kuechenberg stated if we do both projects, we're up to \$876,000. Gallentine stated and it could be another \$876,000 for right of way. Johnson stated and that figure was what with what put down for the road crossing. Kuechenberg stated that was with both projects. Gallentine stated that this was just landowner costs, not road crossing. A landowner stated that especially the west portion you got space and the ditch is not particularly deep. Johnson asked if that landowner was ok with a field entrance off of County Road. The landowner stated he was ok with that, no private crossing but a field drive to the road. Johnson stated that there is someone in Franklin County that is demanding damages because they say that their land was separated but they actually have crossings on both sides to get into it. Johnson stated that we don't know exactly how much the additional right of way will cost, it might be \$100,000. A landowner asked who determines that. Johnson stated that it is usually the fair market value of ground. Gallentine stated on another project we're doing easements; he determines fair market value if you want to go that route.

Johnson stated that one issue that this Board of Trustees has to discuss and decide is if a private land bridge is put in, should the district assume responsibility for that in the future in perpetuity or should you try to shift some of the responsibility to the landowners. Johnson stated that there was two sides to that debate, (1) the landowner says I can get across my land now, if you put in an open ditch preventing me from getting across it, so it's kind of like eminent domain, you're causing a loss of income and I cant get to it, and (2) we're going to put it in for you know and it should last for 50, 75, or even 100 years but after that we're going to designate it as a private land bridge for the landowner to maintain. Johnson stated that I guess you Trustees can talk amongst yourself or you can invite input on that issue for debate. Heinzeroth stated that he knows what a couple of guys would say. Heinzeroth asked any of the attending landowners if they have an opinion. Bartlett asked what the rest of the landowners in the room would say if they were in that spot. Bartlett stated they would probably say that, "we can't get to our ground over there and it's a drainage district crossing." Rabe stated that we're talking about the maintenance of it. Heinzeroth stated that we want to know how you feel about it, the maintenance part of it. Bartlett asked what is maintenance, keeping it so it's not muddy or when it blows out and washes out, it's not the districts anymore it's the landowner? Rabe stated that he would assume the landowner would keep it up so they can get to the other side. Gallentine stated that he doesn't know of a district out there, even if they own the crossing, that would put rock on the top of it. Bartlett stated that he was just saying, what is maintenance. Gallentine stated to me, that's not even in the realm. Bartlett stated that when we say maintenance we're talking about when it washes out it's not the districts problem. Jon Bartlett asked what was done in the project to the east, did you run into that in any situations there. Gallentine stated that those were all private because that has always been an open ditch. Johnson stated that sometimes the private land bridges will come in after the district has been established and that would make it purely private if someone just elected to put it in there simply because they want easier access. Johnson stated that one point for the landowner is that culvert or the land around it washes out fills in that open ditch is that open ditch wont work, it's detrimental to everyone in the district so they should share in the cost of getting it fixed. Johnson added maybe not just one landowner because it happens to cross their ground, it's easier to pay for things when you divide it over the entire assessment schedule. Jon Bartlett asked if he was referring to a culvert or a rail car. Gallentine stated he would say a culvert or a tanker car. Gallentine stated he prefers a tanker car because they're cheaper material wise and lifespan they will last longer than at least a metal culvert will. Johnson stated that from a legal perspective, in order to decrease the chances of being sued, it would be better for the district to maintain responsibility for it and make it a district asset. Johnson stated that if you don't do that then in 75 years from now if it erodes and falls in a landowner three generations from now comes in and states they shouldn't be responsible for it and you have a lawsuit. Johnson stated that several hundred thousand dollars could be spent arguing about it. Johnson stated that if the district maintains responsibility for it, no one will complain. Johnson stated that from his perspective that makes the legal side of things better because you take away grounds to object or to be sued. Johnson stated that the price tag right now is \$50,000. Johnson stated that if it were \$200,000 to cross to get to 17 acres like it is in another county dispute, those circumstances it's different. Johnson recommends that because the district is changing the lay of the land and taking out a tile to put in an open ditch which would sever a landowner from east to west, equity or fairness would favor spreading that cost across the entire district. Heinzeroth asked if the Trustees would need a motion. Johnson stated that the Trustees would do a motion at some point. Johnson stated that the Trustees would do a motion or a resolution stating that the district shall be responsible for this crossing. Gallentine stated that he was assuming that the location of this crossing was fixed. Johnson asked if he meant fixed or legally described. Gallentine stated that it wont change. Gallentine stated he doesn't know how this driveway exists. Gallentine pointed to the map and asked if the landowner owned all of the ground or a portion of it. Gallentine asked what if part of the property was sold off and the landowner wanted to build a new driveway. Gallentine stated that he doesn't think the district should have to pay to build a crossing in a different location due to a change in land ownership. Johnson stated that he agrees. Johnson stated that if that parcel is sold to a different landowner and they want to get from north to south they kind have to take notice of the fact that there's a district when they buy property. Gallentine stated that he assumes that it would have to be put on paper that it is one spot and one location. Johnson stated that was all that was really being requested from any landowner in attendance. Rabe asked if we could put that in a motion.

Johnson stated that the last issue is then if everyone is comfortable moving forward not knowing the exact amount of right of way moving forward. Johnson stated that like Gallentine stated you don't know until you know but you've got a rough idea of how much we have here. Johnson asked if we were talking about one- or two-miles total by how many additional feet and width. Johnson asked Gallentine to calculate some square footage for us. Gallentine stated that he could not answer that right now. Jon Bartlett stated that Pearce is on the west side, who was on the east side of the crossing (blue line) on the Supplement Engineers Report. Bartlett stated that you would be dealing with one person. Johnson stated that him and Gallentine were talking about what the range of what the right of way could cost and if it is 50 feet now and we want it to be 100 times approximately two miles, we would need 15 acres. Johnson asked if it was 60 CSR2. Johnson stated that it would be 10,000 for \$150,000 on an \$880,000 dollar project. Gallentine stated you know attorney there's some things you don't want to do but they make you, you made me calculate that number. Johnson stated that disclaimer that it is rough. Heinzeroth if that was for both sides. Gallentine stated that it's assuming that we have 50 feet of right of way, and we need another 50. Johnson stated that this will give us permission to go on at any time without permission and not have to pay any damages for doing anything on that 100-foot area. Gallentine stated that was a rough number to start the conversation. Gallentine stated that it may be especially on the upper end. Gallentine stated that we might only need 50 feet on the upper end where Bartlett is. Bartlett stated that it seems like a lot. Gallentine asked Bartlett how deep the waterway is where is he. Bartlett stated that through CRP there's no ditch currently there. Bartlett stated that it might be 4 feet to the top. Gallentine stated that you're talking 6 foot down to the bottom, 6 on each side, 12, the top of the bank should have less than 20 feet. Gallentine stated that you may only need 50 feet right of way total. Gallentine pointed to the map and asked how deep the waterway is at that point. Bartlett stated that it was 8-12 feet down. Gallentine stated that he knows we're going deeper, but NRCS is going to require us to stay with those really steep side slopes so if that waterway right now is as deep but if the slopes are flat enough you can drive through it, we may not end up getting any wider, Gallentine didn't know. Gallentine asked if it was flat enough to drive through. Bartlett stated that it was not, just at the one bend. Johnson stated that if any of the landowners is not comfortable moving forward on the row factor, we would have to hold off and task lee to prepare that report. Litigants can get really technical and say that we don't have a written report prepared from an engineer that says the right of way and the cost. Johnson stated that if anyone in the room is uncomfortable because they do not know exactly how much the right of way would cost them, say I don't want to proceed until we have an engineers report that lays that out. Johnson stated that the board would have to task CGA to go do that and continue a hearing. Johnson stated that if you say you're not comfortable knowing some of these things and want a report, because the code does really require a report to take action on unless everyone is comfortable proceeding without it. Johnson stated that from his perspective he would rather see an engineers report and have him find out the answer to these questions on: (1) what is the present right away that can be best calculated, (2) how much more are we going to need, (3) how much that might cost, and (4) how much will that add to the project to plug into the projected schedules. Rabe stated that way we might have the answers from the NRCS too. Johnson stated that we don't have to make a decision on the crossing yet, the Trustees can think about it. Hamilton asked what the projected cost of the extra study doing to get the answers to the guestions that you're posing. Johnson stated that it has to be done no matter what if the project is passed. Gallentine stated that it would have to be done no matter what. Gallentine stated the key was to get answers so we can have a bid letting this winter. Gallentine stated that he preferred to bid let it in the winter. Gallentine stated that we haven't done that portion of the report yet because if we show up to the meetings and no one wants to do it, why would we spend the money. Johnson stated that's what is good about Lee. Johnson stated he's dealt with other districts and some of the engineers come in they about have it ready to bid and it hasn't been approved yet, so they get carried away. Johnson stated that Gallentine tends to be really economical, and he appreciates that about his work. Johnson stated that from a legal perspective he prefers to know what the right of way is and how much it will cost.

Johnson stated that he could throw out what the motion would be and if they agree with it the Trustees could say as stated. Heinzeroth asked how many days' notice, what is the time frame that we don't have to renotify? Heinzeroth asked if we could say in December and still be good. Johnson stated right. Johnson stated that when people come to these meetings they come to find out when the next meeting will be, and it will be published in our minutes as well. Johnson stated that there is a record. Rabe asked Gallentine how much time he will need. Gallentine stated that he has already started on figuring out if there is right of way period. Heinzeroth asked if he wanted to go sooner than a month. Gallentine stated that he did not, with Thanksgiving and everything. Heinzeroth stated that he would not be open December 13th. Heinzeroth stated he could not be at a computer. Gallentine stated that we did not have to do it on a Monday. Heinzeroth stated the 6th or 7th of December would work for him. Gallentine stated that would work for him. Johnson stated that he has something scheduled he is trying to cancel on that day, but he could do it by phone. Heinzeroth asked when this room was open. Kuechenberg stated she would look at the calendar to see if the Large Conference Room was open. Gallentine asked if they had a problem with November 29th. Everyone in the room was oben. Gallentine asked if they had a problem with November 29th. Everyone in the room was oben. Gallentine to determine the current right of way and calculate what additional right of way would be necessary for an open ditch.

Motion by Heinzeroth to continue the hearing on the proposed project in order to task Lee Gallentine to determine the current right of way and calculate what additional right of way would be necessary for an open ditch. Second by Rabe.

Motion by Heinzeroth to have a meeting on November 29, 2021, in the Large Conference Room. Second by Rabe. All ayes. Motion carried.

6. DD 3 WO 304- Discuss W Possible Action - Landowner Request For Update

Rabe stated that Kuechenberg has the information on this. Kuechenberg stated that Denise forwarded her an email thread between herself, Gary Rabe, Honey Creek Land Improvement, and Jon Bartlett. Kuechenberg stated that she attached a copy of the email to the Trustees agenda packet. Kuechenberg stated that Jon reached out to her asking for an update on when the project can begin. Kuechenberg stated that she spoke with Jon the other day and he discussed the project with Jacob Handsaker with Hands on Excavating, Jacob told Bartlett that they would be able to start the project in the spring. Kuechenberg stated that she forwarded those concerns onto Rabe, and he contacted Jacob from Hands On as well. Rabe stated he did talk with Jacob but ultimately, he decided to go with Honey Creek Land Improvement like planned. Rabe stated that Adam with Honey Creek is going to meet with Kuechenberg to start the paperwork for the railroad right of way. Rabe stated that Kuechenberg should stay on him. Rabe asked Kuechenberg to call him tomorrow. Kuechenberg stated that she would do that. Kuechenberg stated that she spoke with Adam, and they agreed to meet later on in the week either Thursday or Friday. Kuechenberg stated that Denise will also be available. Rabe asked Kuechenberg to stay on Adam. Jon Bartlett asked Kuechenberg if he indicated to her that he was going to do it. Jon Bartlett stated that was not what Adam indicated last time, Adam said he would not be able to get to it. Rabe stated that Adam is doing his own farming. Rabe stated Adam wanted to wait until the first of November when he was done with his farm business. Bartlett stated that was what Adam said originally but then he would only be able to work within a certain window that the railroad gave him, and he wouldn't be able to commit to that. Rabe stated that apparently Adam has done some research on it because he was talking about jacking and boring and directional tubing and stuff. Gallentine stated that his only caution is to make sure he is aware of the bid threshold. Gallentine stated that if you start jacking and boring you could easily hit the bid threshold. Gallentine stated that hopefully you can get by with the other solution you talked about. Rabe stated I think that is where it stands right now. Rabe asked if the landowners were satisfied. Bartlett stated that as long as something is moving forward. Bartlett stated that it is a fine line for him, he doesn't want to stick his nose in too far but would like to keep the ball moving. Kuechenberg stated that she will stay on him, she already has informational paperwork printed out and ready to go for Adam.

7. Discuss W Possible Action - New Work Order Requests

Rabe stated he just found out about the beaver dam. Rabe stated that he wishes Kuechenberg would've come to the Trustees. Rabe stated that he has a guy in place that they use when they have issues with beaver dams. Kuechenberg stated that she has not sent anyone out for the beaver dams. Kuechenberg stated that she created a work order in the system to track the project, it hasn't been approved by the Trustees, so no action has been taken on it. Kuechenberg stated she received a call last week from Jeff Farris in district 3. Rabe stated the Trustees have a trapper that they use. Kuechenberg stated ok, so you have your own trapper. Rabe stated so we contact him, this is the first he's heard of the dams. Rabe stated that he will get a hold of the trapper to see if he can do it. Kuechenberg stated if you look on Beacon from the 2020 flyover you can see the dams. Kuechenberg stated she's attached the map to the agenda with the work order. Gallentine stated that the beaver dams are located on DNR property. Gallentine stated that it has been a problem in the past. Gallentine suggested getting rid of the beavers and then getting the dams out. Kuechenberg stated that the landowner was just concerned he would have some flooding issues on his neighboring property if these dams were not removed. Rabe stated that he would get a hold of his trappers and go from there. Rabe stated that they usually pay their trappers like \$40 when they present the beaver tail. Bartlett asked how often has the district dealt with beaver dams? Rabe stated that before when we had trees it was a problem. Rabe stated that he's had several in his area. Gallentine stated the big thing is if you can get rid of the trees. Gallentine stated they still will build with corn stocks and other stuff but not as much. Rabe stated that in our stretch where they took the trees out, Scott Hoover took 8 beavers out of that stretch. Rabe stated if you get rid of the trees, you get rid of the beavers. Gallentine stated the area where they're at is right next to the interstate, and he thinks when they turned that over to the DNR they did some tree planting. Heinzeroth stated so it's going to be a problem. Gallentine stated that it will be a problem.

- 8. Comments/Discussion
- 9. Possible Action
- 10. Other Business
- 11. Adjourn Meeting

Motion by Heinzeroth to adjourn the meeting. Second by Rabe. All ayes. Motion carried.